	DARRELL WAYNE GLASPER, SR.
Plaintiff

v.

MELVIN LEE “KIP” HOLDEN, SR., ESQ.
Defendant


	DOCKET NO.: “           ” DIV.: “     ”
19th JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

PARISH OF EAST BATON ROUGE

STATE OF LOUISIANA


PETITION FOR DAMAGES


NOW INTO COURT, through undersigned counsel, comes the Plaintiff herein, Darrell Wayne Glasper, Sr. (“Glasper”), who files this Petition for Damages and who, with respect to same, does hereby allege, aver, depose, attest, state, and claim as follows:

1. Made Defendant herein is Melvin Lee “Kip” Holden, Sr., Esq. (“Holden”), alleged upon information and belief to be a competent adult of the full age of majority and consent, domiciled, living, and residing in the City of Baton Rouge, Parish of East Baton Rouge, State of Louisiana.

2. Glasper appears herein exclusively in his private capacity as an ordinary citizen who chose to engage in the political process: “Absent clear evidence of general fame or notoriety in the community, and pervasive involvement in the affairs of society, an individual should not be deemed a public personality for all aspects of his life.”  Gertz v. Robert Welch, Inc., 418 U.S. 323, 352, 94 S.Ct. 2997, 3013, 41 L.Ed.2d 789 (1974)

3. This case involves a claim by Glasper for any and all relief available under the Constitutions and Laws of the United States of America and the State of Louisiana, including punitive damages, for the acts, torts, and delicts of Holden in derogation of U.S. Const. Amend. 4, U.S. Const. Amend. 14, 42 U.S.C. 1983, La. C.C. Art. 2315, and La. C.C. Art. 2324.

4. On or about November 19, 2010, and on multiple occasions before and after this date, Holden committed acts of defamation whereby he disparaged, impugned, and otherwise maligned the good name, character, and reputation of Glasper.
5. On the same date and on multiple occasions both before and afterwards, Holden committed multiple tortious, false-light invasions of Glasper’s right to privacy.  See, e.g., Tonubbee v. River Parishes Guide, 97-440, pp. 7-8 (La.App. 5th Cir. 10/28/97), 702 So.2d 971, 975, writ den., 97-3012 (La. 2/13/98), 709 So.2d 747, cert. den., 525 U.S. 858, 119 S.Ct. 142, 142 L.Ed.2d 115 (1998).

6. The predicate for Holden’s defamatory statements and tortious invasions of privacy was, in whole or part, a certain political flier paid for by Glasper and promulgated at Glasper’s direction and behest in late July / early August 2008.
7. The flier recounted Mayor Holden’s alleged prior sexual dalliances and, in particular, the Mayor’s use of his armed, tax payer funded police security detail and motorcade during one particular liaison which ended when the married female’s spouse unexpectedly returned home.
8. The flier truthfully reported eyewitness accounting of the night’s events as a matter of public interest to Baton Rouge voters relative to the upcoming October 4, 2008, mayoral election.
9. In response to the flier, Holden hired prominent counsel and publicly vowed to seek maximum prosecution and even federal investigation / indictment for his accuser.
10. In truth, and despite this loud saber-rattling, Holden never desired an impartial and fair investigation into the flier’s contents, where such would confirm the flier’s veracity and expose Holden’s own moral and ethical failings—and potentially even criminal misconduct.
11. Although publicly calling for a probe of the flier’s author, Mayor Holden did nothing to effectuate such a probe and in fact used back-door political machinations to forestall any substantive investigation into either the flier itself or its author.
12. When, at Holden’s very bold and public request, the Attorney General initiated an investigation of the flier, Holden shortly thereafter, and quite inexplicably, “asked the state attorney general to drop its probe.”  Scott Dyer, Holdens attorney asks end to flier probe, The Advocate, Aug. 15, 2008, at B1.
13. While Holden and his counsel promised they would “continue to pursue the potential civil remedies in this matter,” Holden never lodged any civil action against Glasper.
14. Upon information and belief, Holden never filed a defamation lawsuit against Glasper because proof of the flier’s truth would have yielded an absolute defense to the claim.  La. R.S. 13:3602, Brannan v. Wyeth Laboratories, Inc., 526 So.2d 1101, 1105 (La. 1988).
15. In lieu of actually mounting a legitimate challenge to the flier’s allegations on its merits, Holden simply attacked the messenger—making repeated, scurrilous, malicious, and per se defamatory allegations against a private citizen, Plaintiff Glasper.
16. Long before the flier’s circulation, Holden had castigated Glasper as setting “one of the lowest levels I’ve seen by an official on a public body, and it’s really a slap in the face to a lot of people.”  Scott Dyer, Holden criticizes BREC official’s view, The Advocate, Mar. 7, 2007, at B1.
17. In contrast, Glasper was respectful but firm in his opposition: “[T]he mayor is a good man but has been misled…”  Id.

18. Holden’s vocal criticism of Glasper far exceeded the 2007 newspaper quote, and in early 2008, Holden successfully blocked Glasper from reappointment as a BREC Commissioner.

19. The Louisiana Board of Ethics failed to prosecute Glasper or investigate him in any meaningful way, and in fact allowed the ethics case against him to prescribe without taking any action against him whatever.   

20. After its own ethics case against Glasper was allowed to prescribe without a hint of protest or concern, on November 19, 2010 the Louisiana Board of Ethics sent information about Glasper’s investigation to the East Baton Rouge District Attorney for investigation and possible criminal prosecution.  
21. A corresponding November 20, 2010, newspaper article quotes Holden at length—including a detailed accounting of Holden’s newfound support for this new criminal investigation—despite having requested the same investigation’s unconditional dismissal two (2) years earlier.  Marsha Shuler, Panel seeks investigation, The Advocate, Nov. 20, 2010, at B1.
22. In truth, as a Louisiana attorney licensed since 1987, Holden knew both that criminal charges against Glasper were procedurally time-barred and that Glasper had committed no crime in the first instance in funding and directing the publication of the flier at issue.     
23. Since the District Attorney, an honorable man, could not credibly charge Glasper with any crime, Holden was once again able to have his cake and eat it too by publicly proclaiming his support for the “criminal” investigation by the District Attorney while knowing full well that the sordid details of his reprehensible conduct would not be officially investigated.  
24. With the flier inquiry effectively at an end, Holden once again struck a defiant tone: “Somewhere, there needs to be a system of checks and balances established so that this doesn’t happen to anyone else.”  Bill Lodge, Time runs out on flier inquiry, The Advocate, Mar. 30, 2011, at B1.

25. At the same time, Holden’s hostility towards Glasper intensified dramatically: “These were some of the most egregious acts I’ve ever seen in any political campaign.”  Id.

26. Holden expressly states Glasper was “out to destroy basically my family and those close to me…”  Marsha Shuler, Panel seeks investigation, The Advocate, Nov. 20, 2010, at B1.
27. Holden characterizes Glasper as being dishonest: “I hope this is a message not only to him and others … to run a race that’s fair and based on facts.”  Id.
28. Holden disparages Glasper as being so nefarious and corrupt as to deserve heightened scrutiny from members of law enforcement: “Those people need to be kept in check.”  Id.
29. This latter quote hearkens back to Holden’s earlier scorn for his accusers: “These people are about as dumb as a box of rocks.”  Rebecca Breeden, Mayor’s attorney vows to get tough on smear letter’s author, 225 The Magazine, Aug. 7, 2008.

30. Holden’s initial and belated bravado bookended more than two (2) years during which he actively sought to downplay the flier and its accusations—even going so far as to request the Attorney General’s investigation be terminated.  Scott Dyer, Holdens attorney asks end to flier probe, The Advocate, Aug. 15, 2008, at B1.
31. Reporter Marsha Shuler notes Holden’s sudden shift in tone in her November 20, 2010, article: “Holden slammed Glasper and his associates…”  Marsha Shuler, Panel seeks investigation, The Advocate, Nov. 20, 2010, at B1.
32. The quotations referenced above represent only a sampling of the full-bodied verbal assault levied by Holden against Glasper both in the news media and elsewhere.
33. Holden has made a multiple derogatory, defamatory, and altogether false, malicious, and untrue statements concerning Glasper.

34. Holden’s defamatory statements are deemed “published” for purposes of Louisiana law in accordance with Trentecosta v. Beck, 703 So.2d 552 (La. 1997), where publication “refers to any non-privileged communication of defamatory words, written or oral, and it renders a defendant liable for all republication that is the natural and probable consequence of the author’s act.”  Landrum v. Board of Commissioners of the Orleans Levee District, 95–1591, p. 11 (La.App. 4 Cir. 11/27/96), 685 So.2d 382, 390, citing Martin v. Lincoln General Hospital, 588 So.2d 1329, 1333 (La.App. 2 Cir. 1991).
35. Holden’s disparaging statements have specifically included (1) defamatory words, (2) made without privilege, (3) with knowledge of their falsity, (4) with malice, and (5) with resulting injury.  Lamz v. Wells, 05-1497 (La.App. 1 Cir. 6/9/06), 938 So.2d 792, 797.
36. It is well-settled that “a communication which contains an element of personal disgrace, dishonesty, or disrepute undoubtedly satisfies the definition of defamatory.”  Fitzgerald v. Tucker, 98-2313 (La.6/29/99), 737 So.2d 706, 716.
37. Holden uttered defamatory words which expressly or implicitly accused Glasper of criminal conduct—words which are considered defamatory per se.  Rogers v. Ash Grove Cement Co., 34,934 (La.App.2d Cir. 11/02/01), 799 So.2d 841, 848, writ den., 2001-3187 (La.02/08/02), 808 So.2d 351.
38. Holden communicated with an intent to harm Glasper’s reputation, lower the community’s estimation of Glasper, and/or to deter others from associating with Glasper—all communications which are considered defamatory per se.  Connor v. Scroggs, 35,521-522, 36,109-110, p. 10 (La.App. 2 Cir. 6/12/02), 821 So.2d 542, 550.
39. Holden’s defamatory statements made in reference to Glasper as a private citizen are non-privileged.
40. Alternatively, Holden’s defamatory statements made in reference to Glasper as a public figure are non-privileged where Holden knew his statements were false and/or Holden acted with a reckless disregard for the truth (actual malice).  See, e.g., Romero v. Thomson Newspapers (Wisconsin), Inc., 94-1105, p. 5 (La.1/17/95), 648 So.2d 866, 869.
41. Alternatively, Holden’s defamatory statements made in reference to Glasper as a private citizen with regard to a matter of public interest are non-privileged where Holden exhibited “a significant measure of fault with regard to the falsity of the statement…”  Restatement (Second) of Torts § 580B cmt. c (1977), as cited in Trentecosta v. Beck, 703 So.2d 552, 560 (La. 1997).

42. Holden’s defamatory statements were made with knowledge of their falsity, where Holden lambasted Glasper for the “worst example of smear tactics”; yet, Glasper’s flier reported only publicly-available and demonstrably true facts.

43.  Glasper specifically claims Holden’s defamatory statements were made with malice.  Hardy v. Hartford Ins. Co., 236 F.3d 287 (5th Cir. 2001).
44. Holden’s statements about Glasper were motivated by malice or ill will where Holden lacked a reasonable belief in the veracity of his statements.  Redmond v. McCool, 582 So.2d 262, 265 (La.App. 1 Cir. 1991).
45. Glasper alleges Holden’s defamatory statements did not arise from any act in furtherance of his right of petition or free speech under the United States or Louisiana Constitution, thus making the present action unsuited for disposition pursuant to La. C.C.P. Art. 971.
46. Glasper alleges his ethics and criminal investigations (though ultimately dismissed) were engendered, fostered, precipitated, initiated, and begun at the behest and direction of Holden.
47. Glasper thus asserts a claim for malicious prosecution, invasion of privacy, and/or a claim for deprivation of Plaintiff’s constitutional rights as guaranteed under the Fourth and Fourteenth Amendments.  Tonubbee v. River Parishes Guide, 97-440, pp. 7-8 (La.App. 5th Cir. 10/28/97), 702 So.2d 971, 975, writ den., 97-3012 (La. 2/13/98), 709 So.2d 747, cert. den., 525 U.S. 858, 119 S.Ct. 142, 142 L.Ed.2d 115 (1998).
48. Glasper asserts claims for damage which comport which those identified in Manax v. McNamara, 842 F.2d 808 (5th Cir. 1988) as implicitly approved by Latiolais v. Griffith, 09–0018 (W.D.La. 03/30/11), --- F.Supp.2d ---, 2011 WL 1238315.
49. Glasper alleges Holden used his position as Mayor of Baton Rouge in an effort to carry out a scheme to deprive Glasper of his constitutional rights.

50. Glasper alleges Holden acted at all times outside the legitimate legislative sphere and thus La. Const. Art. III, Sec. 8 does not require immunity.  Hahn v. City of Kenner, 984 F.Supp. 436, 442 (E.D.La., 1997).

51. Section 1983 provides a remedy for any violation of the Fourteenth Amendment, including violations of the Bill of Rights that are incorporated therein:

To read the ‘under color of any statute’ language of the Act in such a way as to impose a limit on those Fourteenth Amendment violations that may be redressed by the Section 1983 cause of action would be wholly inconsistent with the purpose of § 1 of the Civil Rights Act of 1871 . . . from which § 1983 is derived.
Lugar v. Edmondson Oil Co., 457 U.S. 922, 934 (1982).

52. Glasper alleges Holden’s conduct, separately and independently, or jointly and collaboratively with others, caused a violation of Glasper’s clearly-established constitutional rights.  See, e.g., Samuel v. Holmes, 138 F.3d 173, C.A.5 (La.),1998.

53. Glasper alleges Holden’s conduct was not objectively reasonable.  Samuel v. Holmes, 138 F.3d at 176, citing Nerren v. Livingston Police Dep’t, 86 F.3d 469, 473 (5th Cir. 1996).

54. Glasper claims damages for the injuries set forth above under 42 U.S.C. 1983 against Holden for violation of his constitutional rights under color of law, since the conduct and actions of Holden were done under color of state law and in his individual and official capacity and squarely within the scope of his employment.

55. Said acts by Holden were beyond the scope of his jurisdiction, without authority of law, and were an abuse of his powers, and Holden acted willfully, knowingly, and with the specific intent to deprive Glasper of his constitutional rights secured by 42 U.S.C. 1983, and by the Fourth and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution.

56. Holden impaired, interfered with, and abridged Glasper’s clearly established Constitutional rights in derogation and violation of 42 U.S.C. 1983.
57. Holden’s actions were outrageous, unexpected, and caused Glasper both actual damages as well as severe emotional distress, thus constituting the tort of intentional infliction of emotional distress.
58. Holden’s actions were in wanton and reckless disregard for Glasper’s clearly-established rights, and, as a result, Holden is liable to Glasper for punitive damages as allowed by law.
59. Glasper is entitled to and does hereby seek an award of attorney fees in accordance with 42 U.S.C. 1988.
60. Glasper is entitled to and does hereby seek an award of all such other various and sundry relief to which he may be entitled in these premises.
61. Glasper is entitled to and does specifically demand and request a trial by jury.
62. Glasper shows venue in this matter is properly in the Nineteenth Judicial District Court, Parish of East Baton Rouge, in accordance with La. C.C.P. Art. 74, since all of the material events occurred and transpired in the Parish of East Baton Rouge, State of Louisiana.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff Darrell Wayne Glasper, Sr. prays that Defendant be served with  this petition, and after being duly cited to appear and answer same and the expiration of all legal delays and due proceedings are had, that there be judgment to include punitive damages and attorney fees rendered herein in favor of Plaintiff, and against Defendant, Melvin Lee “Kip” Holden, Sr., Esq., for such damages as are reasonable in the premises, together with legal interest from the date of judicial demand until paid, all costs of these proceedings, and all such other equitable and just relief to which Plaintiff may be entitled in these premises.

Respectfully Submitted
Law Office of J. Christopher Alexander, Sr., LLC

Attorney and Counselor at Law

J. Christopher Alexander, Sr., Esq.

Louisiana Bar Roll No.: 26,591

3751 Government Street, Suite A

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70806

225-761-9456 (telephone)

225-761-7899 (facsimile)

chris@jcalaw.us

Counsel for Plaintiff
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PLEASE SERVE:

Melvin Lee “Kip” Holden, Sr., Esq.
234 Rivercrest Avenue

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70807
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